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2019 10 31 147,770,941.31 15,700,663 107.37 11,408
2020 10 31 270,736,473.62 28,765,750 107.37 11,408
2020 187,528,813.80 19,924,936 95.66 10,164
200,014,592.72 21,251,550 100.61 10,690

207,767,345.89 22,075,281 103.04 10,948

221,319,900.59 23,515,239 103.70 11,018

236,853,887.69 25,165,726 107.85 11,459

249,227,378.24 26,480,409 107.91 11,465

253,060,041.59 26,887,629 107.30 11,401

10 270,736,473.62 28,765,750 107.37 11,408

11 306,153,319.39 32,528,790 111.26 11,821

12 343,505,231.35 36,497,431 112.19 11,920

2021 384,432,726.83 40,845,977 112.20 11,921
398,672,936.90 42,359,000 111.05 11,799
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2019 10 31 97,818,154.86 10,393,179 104.18 11,069
2020 10 31 177,235,749.33 18,831,298 101.12 10,744
2020 131,271,673.91 13,947,615 91.69 9,742
139,761,752.50 14,849,686 96.19 10,220

142,882,225.69 15,181,236 98.25 10,439

151,514,802.30 16,098,448 98.63 10,479

161,010,428.70 17,107,358 102.32 10,872

165,270,221.02 17,559,961 102.13 10,851

167,884,911.35 17,837,772 101.30 10,763

10 177,235,749.33 18,831,298 101.12 10,744

11 201,237,520.30 21,381,487 104.53 11,106

12 220,744,743.50 23,454,129 105.16 11,173

2021 237,500,291.82 25,234,406 104.92 11,148
241,336,772.95 25,642,032 103.59 11,006
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2018 28 2021
2018 28 2019 10 3.00 319
2019 11 2020 10 3.00 319
2020 11 0.25 27
2020 12 0.25 27
2021 0.25 27
2021 0.25 27
2020 2021 3.00 319
2018 28 2021 7-00 44
2018 28 2020 10
2018 28 2019 10 7.31 /.18
2019 11 2020 10 0.00 -0-06

100x +
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2018
2018 28 2018 12 -5.74 =573
2019
2019 2019 12 15.40 15.22
2020
2020 2020 12 3.13 2.91
2021
2021 2021 -1.02 -1.02
100x +
2021
2018

BEAEMEES & UHEAE DHER

HER R
GEEIL) 18725 (201 8598 280) ~2021528288 EFHEIL)
0 rmemm i) o
IS o pl R4S (50) 1700
110 600
105 1500
100 400
95 300
g0t 200
85r 4100
80 ' ‘ : : : ' ' ' ' 0

18928 1877231 19/3/3

19/6/30

19920 19°12/31 207343

2000430 200930 2012030

# RE A R, SESTIFENS SsEEOTHREMT D o, SEEFREEEEHERERE SO 1 DSV REHELSELC

HHET,
N
(R TR (20 BE0R 208 ~20215 28288 =REE A 2 E

) U RN () |2

VIS o sl ST (W) 1700

110 | = SRR (T €00

105+ 500

100 <400
95 1300
g0 200
g5 100
EG i i Il I i i i i {:l

1809268 181231 19/3/3

19/6/30 19/9/30 191231 2003431 20464300 2009/30 20/12/31

61/237



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000o0000000000dn(ELs389)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

I N DI

20% -
15.40
15%
10-* = e S R e e Tt it T I | = L s St S e i e e T SR L e S i W T AR
5% 313
0% - ——
-1.02
_5* ..... £
=100 jﬂlﬁﬁ‘: ....... zmg:EF_ jﬂzﬂﬂ‘: .......... 2{]21:5&_
20 mﬁ:&am] (2-:}?.9#1 ﬁ1E|~) (zmu&1ﬂ1a~) (2021&1%1 E~)
2018F128%H 201912878 2020¢E128x08 20214 28+H
SR Dk
20% -
i 15.22
2 e e e . e e ISP
5* 29? = Ll == — et
0% — : ——
ok -1.02
-5.73
OB agiam 2019 20208 20215
20 B‘EEBEEEEI*-] :ﬂfﬁmmﬁ-) (MOE1E1E~) (2021&1%1 E|~)
2851288 21¢E128FE 20205£128%8 202152858

GEERE (%) =100% a—hi+b
a =BER (20 21EC DT IE2EER) 01 DS O Fe HE- SailosBED SR
b=ElE MR O | DS D FRE S
2071 SEORS, BEE S QNS EE

62/237



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 28 2020 10 2020 10
1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2018 28 1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2019 10 990,748 40,043 950,705
990,748 40,043 950,705
1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2019 11 1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
202010 997,582 189,623 1,758,664
997,582 189,623 1,758,664
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2020 10 31
2020 2019
11 10,750,586 1,142,250 7,054,700 749,562
426,274,448 8,9,10 433,803,630 46,091,636 235,644,731 25,037,253
13,246,701 1,407,462 14,638,046 1,555,292
54,806 5,823 109,919 11,679
457,855,723 48,647,171 257,447,396 27,353,786
6,100,000 648,125 8,000,000 850,000
1,547,095 164,379 118,492 12,590
13 575,175 61,112 335,363 35,632
8,222,270 873,616 8,453,855 898,222
449,633,453 47,773,554 248,993,541 26,455,564
12 271,794,927 28,878,211 148,999,640 15,831,212
12 2,531,411 - 1,396,490 -
107.37 11 106.70 11
177,838,526 18,895,343 99,993,901 10,624,352
12 1,758,664 - 950,705 -
101.12 11 105.18 11
2021
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2020 10 31
2020 2019 *

(68) ) - -
14 (4,411,215) (468,692) 12,062,962 1,281,690
9,770,117 1,038,075 4,481,773 476,188
5,358,834 569,376 16,544,735 1,757,878
13,15 696,772 74,032 330,979 35,167
13,15 418,063 44,419 198,587 21,100
13,15 243,864 25,911 115,849 12,309
13,15 27,733 2,947 23,786 2,527
13,15 2,438,673 259,109 1,158,426 123,083
25,159 2,673 25,125 2,670
173,019 18,383 162,891 17,307
4,023,283 427,474 2,015,643 214,162
1,335,551 141,902 14,529,092 1,543,716
16 (4,147,884) (440,713) (1,778,149) (188,928)
(4,147,884) (440,713) (1,778,149) (188,928)
(2.812,333) (298,810) 12,750,943 1,354,788

* 2018 28 2019 10 31
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2020 10 31
2020 2019 *

248,993,541 26,455,564 - -
253,137,467 26,895,856 248,275,008 26,379,220
(49,685,222)  (5,279,055) (12,032,410) (1,278,444)
(2,812,333) (298,810) 12,750,943 1,354,788
449,633,453 47,773,554 248,993,541 26,455,564

2019 10 31
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2020

(2,812,333)

(207,270,114)
2,800,000

4,533,780

(122,565)

55,113
239,812

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(298,810)

(22,022,450)
297,500

481,714

(13,023)

5,856
25,480

2019 ~

12,750,943

(215,581,769)

(12,062,962)

(109,919)
335,363

1,354,788

(22,905,563)

(1,281,690)

(11,679)
35,632

(202,576,307)

(21,523,733)

(214,668,344)

(22,808,512)

254,528,812 27,043,686 233,636,962 24,823,927
(48,256,619) (5,127,266) (11,913,918) (1,265,854)
206,272,193 21,916,421 221,723,044 23,558,073
3,695,886 392,688 7,054,700 749,562
7,054,700 749,562 - -
10,750,586 1,142,250 7,054,700 749,562
9,770,117 1,038,075 4,481,773 476,188
28 2019 10 31
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2020 10 31

2013 12
2018

2018

2020 10 31
25.61 2019 28.03

16
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2020 10 31
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2020 10 31
2020 2020 2019 2019
1,686,150,823 433,803,630 840,745,666 235,644,731
2020 10 31 2018 28 2019 10 31
2020
- 10,750,586 - 10,750,586
433,803,630 - - 433,803,630
- 13,246,701 - 13,246,701
- 54,806 - 54,806
433,803,630 24,052,093 - 457,855,723
- - 6,100,000 6,100,000
- - 1,547,095 1,547,095
- - 575,175 575,175

449,633,453

449,633,453

457,855,723

457,855,723
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2020 10 31
2019
- 7,054,700 - 7,054,700
235,644,731 - - 235,644,731
- 14,638,046 - 14,638,046
- 109,919 - 109,919
235,644,731 21,802,665 - 257,447,396
- - 8,000,000 8,000,000
- - 118,492 118,492
- - 335,363 335,363
- - 248,993,541 248,993,541

- - 257,447,396 257,447,396
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2020 10 31
2020
- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630
- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630
2019
- 235,644,731 - 235,644,731
- 235,644,731 - 235,644,731
2020 10 31 2018 28 2019 10 31

10
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2020

10 31

10.

2020
- - 10,750,586 10,750,586
- - 433,803,630 433,803,630
- - 13,246,701 13,246,701
- - 54,806 54,806
. - 457,855,723 457,855,723
- - 6,100,000 6,100,000
- - 1,547,095 1,547,095
- - 575,175 575,175
- - 8,222,270 8,222,270
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2020 10 31
10.
2019
7,054,700 - - - 7,054,700
i - - 235,644,731 235,644,731
i} - - 14,638,046 14,638,046
i - - 109,919 109,919
7,054,700 - - 250,392,696 257,447,396

- - - 8,000,000 8,000,000

- - - 118,492 118,492
- - - 335,363 335,363

i - - 8,453,855 8,453,855

7,054,700 - -
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2020 10 31
2019 10 31

10,750,586 - 10,750,586
13,246,701 - 13,246,701
23,997,287 - 23,997,287
6,100,000 - 6,100,000
1,547,095 - 1,547,095
575,175 - 575,175
8,222,270 - 8,222,270
7,054,700 - 7,054,700
14,638,046 - 14,638,046
21,692,746 - 21,692,746
8,000,000 - 8,000,000
118,492 - 118,492
335,363 - 335,363
8,453,855 - 8,453,855
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2020 10 31

12

2020 2019

10,750,586 7,054,700

10,750,586 7,054,700

111/237



12

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 10 31

2020

1,396,490
1,421,815
(286,894)

2019

1,474,517
(78,027)

2,531,411

1,396,490

950,705
997,582
(189, 623)

990,748
(40,043)

1,758,664

950,705
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73,630 38,251
44,178 22,951
25,771 13,395
4,750 3,816
257,677 133,880
25,109 25,125
144,060 97,945
575,175 335,363
0.2
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2020 10 31

0.55
2020 2019
(4,533,780) 12,062,962
122,565 -

(4,411,215) 12,062,962
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2020 10 31
0.005
4,147,884 2018 28
2019 10 31 1,778,149
2021 Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited, One Nexus
Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
2020 10 31 42,849,920

228,639,146

2021
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I1I

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 October 2020

2020 2019
Notes USD USD
Assets
Cash 11 10,750,586 7,054,700
Investment in Selected Fund (Cost: USD426,274,448) 8,9,10 433,803,630 235,644,731
Subscriptions receivable 13,246,701 14,638,046
Other assets 54,806 109,919
Total Assets 457,855,723 257,447,396
Liabilities
Payable for purchase of investment in Selected Fund 6,100,000 8,000,000
Repurchases payable 1,547,095 118,492
Other payables 13 575,175 335,363
Total Liabilities 8,222,270 8,453,855
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable 449,633,453 248,993,541

participating units

Representing:
Capital Growth Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,531,411 1,396,490

Net asset value (“ NAV” ) per redeemable
participating unit

12 USD271,794,927  USD148,999,640

uSD107.37 USD106.70

Monthly Distribution Type Units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 1,758,664 950,705
NAV per redeemable participating unit USD101.12 USD105.18

UsD177,838,526 USD99,993,901

Approved on behalf of the Trustee on 3 March 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2020

2020 2019

Notes USD USD
Net income from financials instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Net foreign exchange loss (68) -
Net (loss)/gain on investments 14 (4,411,215) 12,062,962
Dividend income 9,770,117 4,481,773
Total revenue 5,358,834 16,544,735
Investment Manager fees 13,15 696,772 330,979
Fee Agent fees 13,15 418,063 198,587
Administration fees 13,15 243,864 115,849
Custody fees 13,15 27,733 23,786
Distribution fees 13,15 2,438,673 1,158,426
Audit fees 25,159 25,125
Other fees and expenses 173,019 162,891
Total operating expenses 4,023,283 2,015,643
Operating profit 1,335,551 14,529,092
Finance Costs
Distributions to the holder of redeemable
participating units 16 (4,147,884) (1,778,149)
Total Finance Costs (4,147,884) (1,778,149)
Change in net assets attributable to the holder of (2,812,333) 12,750,943

redeemable participating units

*For the period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of operations) to 31 October 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®"s Collection

A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Participating

Units
For the year ended 31 October 2020

2020
usb

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

participating units at start of year/period 248,993,541

Issue of redeemable participating units 253,137,467
Repurchase of redeemable participating units (49,685,222)

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of

redeemable participating units (2,812,333)

2019*
usD

248,275,008

(12,032,410)

12,750,943

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

participating units at end of year/period 449,633,453

248,993,541

*For the period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of operations) to 31 October 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 October 2020

Operating activities

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of
redeemable participating units

Purchase of investment in Selected Fund
Proceeds from sale of investment in Selected Fund

Adjustment for items not involving cash

Movement in unrealised gain/(loss) on investment in
Selected Fund

Net realised loss on investment in Selected Fund

Net change in non-cash operating balances
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase in other payables

Net cash used in operating activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating
units

Payments for repurchase of redeemable participating
units

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year/period

Cash at end of year/period

Supplementary information:

Dividends received

2020
usD

(2,812,333)
(207,270,114)

2,800,000

4,533,780

(122,565)

55,113
239,812

2019~
usD

12,750,943
(215,581,769)

(12,062,962)

(109,919)
335,363

(202,576,307)

(214,668,344)

254,528,812

(48,256,619)

233,636,962

(11,913,918)

206,272,193

221,723,044

3,695,886 7,054,700
7,054,700 -
10,750,586 7,054,700
9,770,117 4,481,773

*For the period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of operations) to 31 October 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

Meister®s Collection (For Qualified Institutional Investors only) (the* Series Trust” ) has
been created and established pursuant to the Master Trust Deed for Credit Suisse Universal
Trust (Cayman) 111 (the" Master Trust” ) dated 2 December 2013 and a Supplemental Trust Deed
dated 3 August 2018 (the" Supplement Trust Deed” and together with the Master Trust Deed, the
“ Trust Deed” ).

The Series Trust commenced trading on 28 September 2018, issuing Capital Growth Type Units
and Monthly Distribution Type Units respectively.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to provide investors with the option of
receiving either current income or capital appreciation by indirectly investing under normal
market conditions mainly in income-producing debt and equity securities including, but not
limited to, corporate bonds, convertible bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks. It is
expected that the Series Trust will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing
substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust into the USD Distribution Class Units of
Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income Fund (the" Selected Fund” ). The Selected Fund is a series trust
of Global Multi Strategy, an umbrella unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman
Islands (the* Umbrella Trust” ). At 31 October 2020, the Series Trust had a 25.61% (2019:
28.03%) holding in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may also hold USD cash and money market securities (including but not
limited to commercial paper, certificates of deposit and government bills).

Sumitomo Mitsui Asset DS Management Company, Limited (the" Investment Manager” ) shall have
day-to-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion
of the Series Trust"s portfolio comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market
securities (the" Subadvised Portfolio” ).

The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. It is intended
that the portion of such income that is attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units
will be distributed to holders of such class of Units on each distribution date, as further
described in Note 16.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek to provide a high level of income
and attractive risk-adjusted returns by investing in corporate securities across the capital
structure based on the investment manager of the Selected Fund, NWQ Investment Management
Company, LLC"s (the* SF Investment Manager” ) assessment of relative value and risk. The base
currency of the Selected Fund is USD.

In order to pursue its investment objective, the SF Investment Manager employs a rigorous
research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with
positive risk/reward characteristics in selecting investments for the Selected Fund.

The SF Investment Manager®s approach to investing is based upon a bottom-up, fundamental
approach. The team conducts independent research focused on understanding individual
companies as businesses rather than viewing them simply as stocks. Part of the methodology
includes rigorous financial statement evaluation, focusing on balance sheet and cash flow
statement analysis above solely relying upon the income statement, a process they believe
allows for a true understating of a company®s economic profitability, cash flow and return on
capital.

The SF Investment Manager®s investment process focuses on the attractiveness of a particular
security within a company™s capital structure and seeks to invest in securities that it feels
possess the appropriate balance between risk and reward and that represent good value when
compared to other similar securities. The SF Investment Manager may choose to sell securities
or reduce its exposure to a security, including through the use of the financial derivative
instruments described below, if it feels that a company no longer possesses favorable
risk/reward characteristics, attractive valuations or catalysts, if it identifies better
alternatives within a company"s capital structure, or if a company suspends or is projected
to suspend its dividend or interest payments.

123/237



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The SF Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Selected Fund in a diversified
portfolio of investments including, but not limited to, debt and equity securities of US or
non-US companies. The debt securities in which the SF Investment Manager invests, for the
account of the Selected Fund, may invest include, but are not limited to, corporate bonds,
mortgage-backed securities, taxable municipal securities, and US Government and agency debt
securities. Preferred securities are securities issued by corporate issuers that generally
pay fixed or adjustable rate distributions to investors and have preference over common
shares in the payment of distributions and the liquidation of a company®s assets, but are
junior to most other forms of a company®s debt, including both senior and subordinated debt.

The SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest without limit in
preferred securities and debt securities that are rated lower than investment grade at the
time of purchase or in unrated securities of comparable quality. These securities may also be
referred to as sub-investment grade securities and generally provide high income in an effort
to compensate investors for their higher risk of default, which is the failure to make
required interest or principal payments. Accordingly, the NAV of the Selected Fund may have a
relatively high level of volatility.

There is no limitation on the average maturity or average effective duration of the
securities held by the Selected Fund.

Normally, the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest
substantially all of the Selected Fund®s assets to meet its investment objective. To the
extent that the Selected Fund"s assets are not fully invested in accordance with its
investment objective, the SF Investment Manager®s investment decisions may be made on the
basis of short-term market considerations in which case the SF Investment Manager, for the
account of the Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities. For
temporary defensive purposes, including during periods of high cash inflows and outflows, the
SF Investment Manager may temporarily deviate from the investment policies and restrictions
of the Selected Fund. During such periods, the Selected Fund may not achieve its investment
objective.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited integrated their custody business into Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust Bank Limited, (London Branch) on 2 March 2020 following both UK and Japanese regulatory
approvals. Its ultimate parent which s Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc a Japanese
company quoted on the Tokyo Stock Exchange remains unchanged post the integration.

During the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic has spread across the globe. It is causing very
significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally, including very
significant disruption to business and economic activity. The economic disruption may
significantly reduce the value of many financial instruments including those held by the
Series Trust. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Series Trust is not possible
to estimate at this time and will only be finally determined on realization of investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“ IFRS” ) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(* 1ASB” ), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee of the IASB.

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (* USD” ) and not the local
currency of the Cayman Islands. The units of the Series Trust are issued and redeemed in Yen
but the Series Trust"s operations are primarily conducted in USD.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and IAS 27)

(2012) (the amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of
an investment entity.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee
in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
Notes 9 and 10.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following material items.

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“ FVTPL" )

Fair value

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial period.
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 November 2019

and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these
new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none is expected to have a material impact on
the Series Trust®"s financial statements in the period of initial application.

NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 November 2019

The IFRS Interpretations Committee (* IFRIC" ) published a new interpretation IFRIC 23

“ Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” , specifying how entities should reflect
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. IFRIC 23 addresses the previous lack of guidance
in IAS 12 Income Taxes” , which specifies how to account for current and deferred tax, but
not how to reflect the effects of uncertainty. The Trustee and Manager evaluated the effect
of IFRIC 23 and deemed that it did not have a significant impact on the financial statements
since the majority of the Series Trust®"s financial instruments are, in the opinion of the
Trustee and Manager, not subject to material uncertain tax treatment.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to
all periods presented in these financial statements are as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on
the trade date, which is the date on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised on the date on which they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an

item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i1) Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“ SPPI” ).

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:
the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust"s
management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;
how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in the prior period, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i1) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment,“ principal” is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition.“ Interest” is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the

contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows

such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series Trust

considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Series Trust"s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features);

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates).

For a reconciliation of line items in the Statement of Financial Position to the categories
of financial instruments, as defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Series Trust were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case
all affected financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(i1) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised
in profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment in Selected Fund is included in this category.

The fair value of the investment in the Selected Fund is based on the unaudited NAV per unit
obtained from the Selected Fund®s administrators, which has been assessed as the most
representative measure of fair value as determined by the Investment Manager. Realised and
unrealised gains or losses on the investment in the Selected Fund are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash, subscriptions receivable and other assets are included in this category.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i1) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

As at the year ended 31 October 2020 and the period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of
operations) to 31 October 2019, there were no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include payable for purchase of investment in
Selected Fund, repurchases payable and other payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

“ Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in
the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active
market at a mid-price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit
price.

IT there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation
techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The* amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (* ECLS” ) on
financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series
Trust"s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)
The Series Trust considers a financial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full, without
recourse by the Series Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Series Trust considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating
of the counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “ investment
grade”

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust
is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Series Trust expects to
receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is" credit-impaired” when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(v) Impairment (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Series Trust has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control
of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vi) Derecognition (continued)

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers
of assets with retention of all or substantially all of the risks and rewards include sale
and repurchase transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master
netting agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the
Statement of Financial Position. As at 31 October 2020 and 2019, the Series Trust does not
hold any financial assets or liabilities subject to master netting arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust, Limited
(London Branch) (formerly Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited) as its custodian (the

“ Custodian” ). The Custodian have, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

(* BBH” ) as their sub-custodian (the" Sub-Custodian” ). Cash is ultimately held at BBH as
the Series Trust®s banker. Cash comprises of cash held with maturities of 3 months or less
with BBH.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment income

The Selected Fund®s distribution policy is for the Trustee, in agreement with the Manager, to
declare distributions, in respect of each class of Units, on a monthly basis, following each
“ Distribution Record Date” (the 10t" day of each calendar month, or where such day is not a
business day immediately following such day). Such distributions are declared in such amounts
(if any) as the Manager may determine.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation,
capital gains or other Cayman Islands taxes payable by the Trust. The Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands that it will be exempt from
such taxes for a period of Fifty years from 2 December 2013 should they be enacted. As a
result, no provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Series Trust
may be subject to foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust"s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“ the functional
currency” ), which is USD. Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investments, issue and repurchase of redeemable participating units and income and
expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the
respective dates of such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD at the exchange rates ruling at the year/period end date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are stated at
fair value, are translated into USD, at the date the fair value was determined. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from translation, if any, are included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
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(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable Participating Units

The Redeemable Participating Units sold by the Series Trust are puttable instruments and are
classified as financial liabilities as they do not meet the conditions for equity
classification under the amendments to IAS 32, as there were different classes of Units with
different features in issue throughout the year/period (Note 12). The NAV per Unit is
calculated by dividing the total Net Assets of the Series Trust attributable to each Unit
class by the number of Units in issue in each respective class. All Units are issued and
redeemed at this price.

Interest in another entity

Interest in another entity is defined for the purpose of IFRS 12 as contractual or non-
contractual involvement that exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance
of the other entity. It can be evidenced by holding of equity or debt instruments, but also
liquidity support, credit enhancement and guarantees.

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment fund in which it
invests, but that it does not consolidate, meets the definition of a structured entity
because:

- the voting rights in the Selected Fund are not dominant rights in deciding who controls
them because the rights relate to administrative tasks only;

- the Selected Fund"s activities are restricted by its offering documents and applicable
appendix; and

- the Selected Fund has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment
opportunities to investors.
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(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in another entity (continued)

The table below describes the type of structured entity that the Series Trust does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest.

Type of structured Nature and purpose Interest held by the

entity Series Trust

Investment Fund To provide a high level of income and Investments in units
attractive risk-adjusted return by issued by the Selected

investing in corporate securities across Fund
the capital structure based on the

Manager®s assessment of relative value and

risk.

The table below sets out interests held by the Series Trust in unconsolidated structured
entities. The Maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amounts of the financial assets held
at 31 October 2020 and 2019.

Total net Carrying Total net Carrying
assets amount at assets amount at
(unaudited) FVTPL  (unaudited) FVTPL
2020 2020 2019 2019

UsD usD usD usD

Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income Fund 1,686,150,823 433,803,630 840,745,666 235,644,731

During the year ended 31 October 2020 and the period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of
operations) to 31 October 2019, the Series Trust did not provide additional financial support
to unconsolidated structured entities and has no current obligation to or intention of
providing other financial or other support.
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(Continued)

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Financial
Mandatorily assets at liabilities
2020 at FVTPL amortised at amortised Total
cost cost
usD usD usD usD
Cash - 10,750,586 - 10,750,586
Investment in Selected Fund 433,803,630 - - 433,803,630
Subscriptions receivable - 13,246,701 - 13,246,701
Other assets - 54,806 - 54,806
433,803,630 24,052,093 - 457,855,723
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected Fund B h 6,100,000 6,100,000
Repurchases payable - - 1,547,095 1,547,095
Other payables - - 575,175 575,175
Net assets attributable to
the holder of redeemable - - 449,633,453 449,633,453
participating units
- - 457,855,723 457,855,723
2019
Cash - 7,054,700 - 7,054,700
Investment in Selected Fund 235,644,731 - - 235,644,731
Subscriptions receivable - 14,638,046 - 14,638,046
Other assets - 109,919 - 109,919
235,644,731 21,802,665 - 257,447,396
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected Fund - - 8,000,000 8,000,000
Repurchases payable - - 118,492 118,492
Other payables - - 335,363 335,363

Net assets attributable to
the holder of redeemable
participating units

248,993,541

248,993,541

257,447,396

257,447,396
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(Continued)

9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those
whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
guoted prices in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes
all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable
data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument®s valuation.
This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any instruments
in this category.

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Financial assets at FVTPL

Investment in Selected Fund - 433,803,630 - 433,803,630

- 433,803,630 - 433,803,630

2019
Financial assets at FVTPL

Investment in Selected Fund - 235,644,731 - 235,644,731

- 235,644,731 - 235,644,731

There were no transfers across the three levels during the year ended 31 October 2020 and the
period from 28 September 2018 (commencement of operations) to 31 October 2019.
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(Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, other receivables and other payables. These are short-term financial assets and
financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-
term nature.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust"s financial instruments can be summarised as
follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It
represents the potential loss the Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions
in the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk,
currency risk and interest rate risk.

In order to pursue the Series Trust"s investment objective, the Manager has committed to

employing a rigorous research-focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued
companies with positive risk/reward characteristics.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

The Series Trust will invest, together with other investors, all, or substantially all of its
assets through a“ master-feeder” structure in the Selected Fund. A“ master-feeder” structure,
in particular the existence of multiple investment vehicles investing in the same portfolio,
presents certain unique risks to investors. Smaller investment vehicles investing in the
Selected Fund may be materially affected by the actions of larger investment vehicles
investing in the Selected Fund. For example, if a larger investment vehicle withdraws from
the Selected Fund, the remaining funds may experience higher pro rata operating expenses,
thereby producing lower returns. Substantial withdrawals of capital by investors in the
Selected Fund, including the Series Trust and any other investors, over a short time period
could necessitate the liquidation of investment positions at a time and in a manner which
does not provide the most economic advantage to the Selected Fund and which therefore could
adversely affect the NAV of the Selected Fund and hence the NAV of the Series Trust.

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust in the
Selected Fund. The Series Trust will be required to comply with the terms of the Selected
Fund®s offering memoranda and constitutive documents, which may place limits on subscriptions
and repurchases, and additionally the liquidation of the Selected Fund would lead to the
compulsory repurchase of any shares held for the account of the Series Trust which may, in
some cases, lead to compulsory repurchases of Units. Accordingly, the performance of the
Series Trust may not absolutely reflect the performance of the Selected Fund.

The price of the units of the Selected Fund may fall as well as rise. There can be no
assurance that the Selected Fund will achieve its investment objective or that an investor
will recover the full amount invested in the Selected Fund. Restrictions on investments in
certain jurisdictions may limit the liquidity of the Selected Fund"s investments. The capital
return and income of the Selected Fund is based on the capital appreciation and income on the
investments it holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, the Selected Fund®s return may be
expected to fluctuate in response to changes in such capital appreciation or income. An
investment in the Selected Fund should be viewed by an investor as a medium to long term
investment.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

The Selected Fund is subject to market risk. Market risk is the risk that a particular share,
a fund, an industry, or securities in general may fall in value. The value of investments in
the Selected Fund will go up and down with the prices of securities in which the Selected
Fund invest. The prices of securities change in response to many factors, including the
historical and prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, management
decisions, demand for an issuer®s products or services, production costs, general economic
conditions, interest rates, currency exchange rates, investor perceptions, geopolitical
factors and market liquidity.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate
risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, or its issuer. The
Series Trust is susceptible to price risk that occurs at the Selected Fund, which may include
substantial risks as a result of trading by the Selected Fund of equity securities,
derivative instruments, options and futures, including securities denominated in different
currencies while executing their investment strategy. As the Selected Fund®s investments in
securities, futures contracts and swap are carried at fair value with fair value changes
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect the net assets attributable to the Series Trust.

As at 31 October 2020, if the price of the Investment in Selected Fund had increased by 5%
with all other variables held constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of
Usb21,690,182 (2019: USD11,782,237). A decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant,
would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown above.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in
securities and other investments denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets
may be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in currency rates. Although the
Series Trust"s investments are USD denominated, the Series Trust indirectly bears currency
risk on the investment held in the Selected Fund. The Investment Manager will monitor the
portfolio of the Selected Fund.

The class of units held by the Series Trust in the Selected Fund is USD denominated. This
presents certain risks relating to currency conversion if an investor®s financial activities
are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (including JPY) (the" Investor's
Currency” ) other than USD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly
change (including changes due to devaluation of USD or revaluation of the Investor®s
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the Investor®s
Currency, as the case may be, may impose or modify exchange controls. An increase in the
value of the Investor®s Currency against USD would decrease (a) the Investor®s Currency
equivalent value of the NAV of the Selected Fund and NAV of the Selected Fund per unit and
(b) the Investor®s Currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (if any).

Some of the assets of the Selected Fund may be invested in other currencies and any income
received by the Selected Fund from these investments will be received in those currencies,
some of which may fall in value against the functional currency of the Selected Fund. In
addition, the Selected Fund may invest directly in currency deposits or forward contracts or
equivalent derivatives, in some cases for hedging purposes.

ALl the financial assets of the Series Trust, are denominated in USD with the effect that the
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be
significantly affected by currency movements and as a result, a sensitivity analysis has not
been performed.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to

adverse movements in relevant interest rates. The majority of the Series Trust"s other
financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. As a result, the Series
Trust is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates. However, the Series Trust is exposed to
higher levels of interest rate risk through its investment in the Selected Fund.

Interest rate risk at the Selected Fund level is the risk that the value of the Selected
Fund"s portfolio may decline during periods of rising interest rates. When interest rates
change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change
than the values of shorter-duration debt securities. The Selected Fund may be subject to a
greater risk of rising interest rates than would have been the case in past periods due to
the recent environment of near historically low rates, including negative interest rates, and
the effect of potential government fiscal policy initiatives and resulting market reaction to
those initiatives. Due to the Selected Fund®s investment strategy, assets held by the
Selected Fund would see fluctuation based on changes to the market interest rates.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)

The table below and overleaf summarises the Series Trust®"s exposure to interest rate risks.

It includes the Series Trust"s assets at fair values, categorised by the earlier of

contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Less than 1 Variable Fixed Non-interest
2020 month interest* interest bearing Total
Assets uUsD usD uUsD usD usD
Cash - - - 10,750,586 10,750,586
Financial assets at
EVTPL - - - 433,803,630 433,803,630
Subscriptions - . _ 13,246,701 13,246,701
receivable
Other assets - - - 54,806 54,806
Total assets - - - 457,855,723 457,855,723
Liabilities
Payable for purchase
of investment in - - - 6,100,000 6,100,000
Selected Fund
Repurchases payable - - - 1,547,095 1,547,095
Other payables - - - 575,175 575,175
Total liabilities
excluding Net Assets
attributable to
Holders of - - - 8,222,270 8,222,270
Redeemable
Participating Units
Total Interest _ _ _ N/A N/A

Sensitivity Gap

*Items classified as variable reprice
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)
Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Less than 1 Variable Fixed Non-interest
2019 month interest* interest bearing Total
Assets uUsD usD UsD UsD UsD
Cash 7,054,700 - - - 7,054,700
Financial assets at
EVTPL - - - 235,644,731 235,644,731
Subscriptions - - - 14,638,046 14,638,046
receivable
Other assets - - - 109,919 109,919
Total assets 7,054,700 - - 250,392,696 257,447,396
Liabilities
Payable for purchase
of investment in - - - 8,000,000 8,000,000
Selected Fund
Repurchases payable - - - 118,492 118,492
Other payables - - - 335,363 335,363

Total liabilities
excluding Net Assets
attributable to
Holders of
Redeemable
Participating Units
Total Interest
Sensitivity Gap

- - - 8,453,855 8,453,855

7,054,700 - - N/A N/A

*Items classified as variable reprice annually or semi-annually at various dates during the
year/period.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash
repurchases of Redeemable Participating Units, which can be redeemed at the holder®s option
based on the Series Trust®s NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit at the time of the
repurchase. There are no repurchase restrictions on units of the Series Trust, other than in
the limited circumstances specified in the documentation. The Manager may borrow monies, for
the account of the Series Trust, provided that it will not result in an aggregate outstanding
amount of borrowing in excess of 10% of the NAV.

Redeemable Participating Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of unitholders
of the Series Trust as at each business day and/or such other day or days as the Manager may
from time to time determine (the" Repurchase Day” ).

Per the policies of the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is able to redeem their investment in
the Selected Fund on any Repurchase Day (as defined above). As the repurchase policies of
both the Series Trust and Selected Fund are aligned, there is minimal impact on the Series
Trust®s liquidity risk. The Selected Fund®s securities are considered by the SF Investment
Manager to be readily liquid. The Selected Fund®s liquidity risk is managed on a daily basis
by the SF Investment Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in place.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Series Trust"s financial assets and liabilities by contractual
maturity as at 31 October 2020 and 2019:

Over 3
Less than months or no
1 month 1-3 months Fixed Total
maturity
2020 usD usD usb usD
Assets
Cash 10,750,586 - - 10,750,586
Subscriptions receivable 13,246,701 - - 13,246,701
Total Financial Assets 23,997,287 - - 23,997,287
Liabilities
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected Fund 6,100,000 h h 6,100,000
Repurchases payable 1,547,095 - - 1,547,095
Other payables 575,175 - - 575,175
Total Financial Liabilities 8,222,270 - - 8,222,270
2019
Assets
Cash 7,054,700 - - 7,054,700
Subscriptions receivable 14,638,046 - - 14,638,046
Total Financial Assets 21,692,746 - - 21,692,746
Liabilities
Payable for purchase of
investment in Selected Fund 8,000,000 h - 8,000,000
Repurchases payable 118,492 - - 118,492
Other payables 335,363 - - 335,363

Total Financial Liabilities 8,453,855 - - 8,453,855
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk

The Series Trust may be exposed to the credit risk of the counterparties with which it trades
in relation to non-exchange-traded derivative instruments as these will not be afforded the
same protections as may apply to participants trading such instruments on organised
exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of an exchange clearing house. The counterparty
in a non-exchange-traded derivative transaction will be the specific company or firm involved
in the transaction rather than a recognised exchange, and accordingly the insolvency,
bankruptcy or default of a counterparty with which the Trustee, the Manager and the
Investment Manager trade such instruments in respect of the Series Trust, could result in
substantial losses to the Series Trust. The Trustee, the Manager and the Investment Manager,
in respect of the Series Trust, may have contractual remedies upon any default pursuant to
agreements relating to particular derivatives transactions. Such remedies could be
inadequate, however, to the extent that the collateral or other assets available are
insufficient.

Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held
at the Sub-Custodian as Banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust is held by the Sub-
Custodian at year/period end. The Sub-Custodian has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2019: A+).
The Custodian (which is responsible for both the Series Trust and Selected Fund) has a
Moody®s credit rating of Al (2019: Al). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may
cause the Series Trust"s rights with respect to its investments in debt securities held by
the bank to be delayed or limited.

The Portfolio Managers of the SF Investment Manager continuously monitor the credit
worthiness/risk of the Selected Fund®s investments.

The assets held for the account of the Selected Fund are subject to risks resulting from
changes in the creditworthiness of the underlying investments of the Selected Fund or the
issuer of such investments. This could lead to greater volatility in the prices of the
security and in units of the Selected Fund. For example, an issuer of a bond might not be
able to meet its obligation to make interest and principal payments, or bond investors as a
whole may downgrade their view of the issuer resulting in a deterioration of the price of the
issuer®s debt. In addition, credit opinions from credit rating agencies may weigh on the
credit spreads of the investments made for the account of the Selected Fund.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cash, interest, dividends and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust
considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of
the counterparties.

CASH

Cash comprises of cash held with the Sub-Custodian with original maturities of three months

or less.
2020 2019
UsD UsD
Cash 10,750,586 7,054,700
10,750,586 7,054,700

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS

The Series Trust has two classes of units: Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly Distribution

Type Units.

2020 2019
Capital Growth Type Units
Number of units outstanding as at start of year/period 1,396,490 -
Number of units issued 1,421,815 1,474,517
Number of units repurchased (286,894) (78,027)
Number of units outstanding as at end of year/period 2,531,411 1,396,490
Monthly Distribution Type Units
Number of units outstanding as at start of year/period 950,705 -
Number of units issued 997,582 990,748
Number of units repurchased (189,623) (40,043)

Number of units outstanding as at end of year/period 1,758,664 950,705
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12. NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS (continued)

From and including the initial closing day, units of each class of units will be available
for subscription by investors at a price equal to the NAV per Unit of the applicable class of
units on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The NAV per Unit for each
class of Units will be calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing day is
not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription
amount s 1 unit and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate
subscription amounts will be rounded naturally to the nearest two decimal places with 0.005
being rounded up. There will be no subscription fee payable.

Investors may subscribe for units of a class of units during the initial offer period by
sending a completed application form to the Administrator by no later than 5.00 p.m. (Tokyo
time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such other times and/or days as the
Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by telegraphic transfer from an account in
the name of the applicant for the account of the Series Trust for a cash settlement date on
or before the date falling one business day after the initial closing day. Payment must be
made in USD. No third party payments will be accepted. Incomplete application forms may, in
the discretion of the Manager, be held over to the first dealing day following receipt of a
completed application form and units will then be issued at the relevant NAV per Unit on such
dealing day.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each dealing day which is
also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as
the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust in respect of
Units of a class of Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. The repurchase notice once served is irrevocable, unless the Manager, after
consultation with the Trustee, determines otherwise. The repurchase price per unit of a class
of units will be calculated as the NAV per unit of such class of units as at the relevant
Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately
preceding valuation day). The Manager may, in its sole discretion, hold over any repurchase
notice received after the repurchase notice deadline until the next following Repurchase Day
and repurchase the relevant units at the relevant repurchase price applicable to such class
of units on that Repurchase Day.
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Meister®s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Series Trust"s fees payable as at 31 October 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

usb usb

Investment Manager fees 73,630 38,251
Fee Agent fees 44,178 22,951
Administration fees 25,771 13,395
Custody fee 4,750 3,816
Distribution fees 257,677 133,880
Audit fees 25,109 25,125
Other fees and expenses 144,060 97,945
575,175 335,363

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable

quarterly in arrears at the rate of 0.2% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee payable quarterly in

arrears at the rate of 0.12% per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent is responsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will
also cover all costs and expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry
expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance
out of the Fee Agent Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent
Fees for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable
monthly in arrears.

153/237



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister®s Collection
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Administration Fees

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a monthly fee of 0.07% per
annum of the NAV on the first USD500 million, 0.06% per annum of the NAV on the next USD500
million and 0.05% per annum of the NAV after USD1,000 million.

All of the Administrator®s fees are subject to additions in relation to value added tax (if
any). In addition, the Trustee pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the
Administrator™s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for photocopying, fax, telephone, printing,
courier, postage and other communications charges, as well as for any banking costs and the
fees or charges of any government or official department, body or organisation, and any other
similar expenses, costs, fees or charges paid by the Administrator on behalf of the Series
Trust in connection with the performance of its services for the Series Trust.

Custody Fees
The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD750 a month plus

transaction charges.
The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed
between the relevant parties and is reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all

out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives out the Series Trust, a fee on a monthly basis at the rate of 0.7%
per annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.
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Meister®"s Collection

A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 October 2020
(Continued)

FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

Fees of the Selected Fund

As the Series Trust intends to invest substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund,

the Series Trust will indirectly bear the costs and fees applicable to the Selected Fund.
These fees will reduce the NAV attributable to holders of redeemable participating units of
the Selected Fund, which will affect the value of the Investment in Selected Fund presented
in the Statement of Financial Position of the Series Trust. The total fees of the Selected
Fund are approximately 0.55% of the assets under management of the Selected Fund per annum

subject to change of certain fixed fees. More details regarding the breakdown of specific

fees paid within the Selected Fund are available in the Offering Documents of the Series

Trust.

NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENTS

Net (loss)/gain on investments consists of the following

Movement in unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets at
FVTPL
Net realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL

Net (loss)/gain on investments
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The
Trustee, Manager, Investment Manager, Fee Agent, Administrator, Custodian and Distributor are
deemed to be related parties of the Series Trust. The Trustee is a related party by virtue of
its power to create the Trust under the Deed of Establishment. The Manager is a related party
by virtue of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment and by virtue of common
ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Investment Manager is a
related parties by virtue of their power to make investment decisions. The Fee Agent is a
related party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it provides
calculation agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in
Note 13. The Distributor, Administrator and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their
affiliation with the Investment Manager. There were no transactions with related parties
other than those in the normal course of business. Fees incurred with related parties during
the year/period are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and discussed in Note
13. Amounts charged by and payable to related parties as at 31 October 2020 and 2019 are
disclosed in Note 13.

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current distribution
policy of the Series Trust is:

(i) in respect of the Capital Growth Type Units, to pay no distribution; and

(i1) in respect of the Monthly Distribution Type Units, pay to holders of such class of Units
a monthly distribution (a“ Monthly Distribution” ) in respect of each distribution date
paid out of the investment principal (a realisation of units in the Selected Fund) which
may also be in excess of any capital gain and attributable to the Monthly Distribution
Type Units in respect of the corresponding distribution period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

16. DISTRIBUTION POLICY (continued)

17.

The amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each distribution date shall be
determined by the Manager in its sole discretion taking into account (1) realized and
unrealised capital gains from the Selected Fund, and (2) miscellaneous costs, among other
factors, per Unit each month.

Furthermore, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in
circumstances where it deems appropriate, elect that a Monthly Distribution is not payable in
respect of Monthly Distribution Type Units for a relevant month, notwithstanding its option
to use the investment principal attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units.
Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to
where it determines in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust"s investment
objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous month or have
underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it appropriate to make such an election.

Any Monthly Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such
distribution) on the corresponding distribution date. Distributions will be made to the
person in whose name Monthly Distribution Type Units are registered on the register of
Unitholders on the relevant distribution record day. Such distributions will be rounded
naturally to two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up.

Distributions paid during the year ended amounted to USD4,147,884 (during the period from 28
September 2018 (commencement of operations) to 31 October 2019: USD1,778,149).

POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the Covid-19 pandemic has continued to spread across the globe. It is
still causing very significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally,
including very significant disruption to business and economic activity and very large falls
in the values of very many financial assets. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the
Series Trust is not possible to estimate at this time.

Effective 1 February 2021, the registered office address of the Trustee changed to Elian
Trustee (Cayman) Limited, One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 October 2020
(Continued)

17. POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS (continued)

Subsequent to 31 October 2020, there were redemptions of USD42,849,920 from the Series Trust
and there were subscriptions of USD228,639,146 into the Series Trust.

As of 3 March 2021, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require
disclosure in the financial statements.
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
11 7,465,032 793,160 786,902 83,608
8,9,10 1,054,817,585 112,074,368 164,365,179 17,463,800
25,685,530 2,729,088 28,733,154 3,052,898
12 12,195,506 1,295,773 2,179,368 231,558
1,100,163,653 116,892,388 196,064,603 20,831,864
8,9,10 100,956 10,727 148,738 15,803
92,017 9,777 - -
13 7,360,489 782,052 5,679,111 603,406
7,553,462 802,555 5,827,849 619,209
1,092,610,191 116,089,833 190,236,754 20,212,655

2020

30
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
7 7,778,193 826,433 511,130 54,308
7 181,855 19,322 23,593 2,507
7 22,472,084 2,387,659 1,286,298 136,669
(154,469) (16,412) 283,102 30,080
15 50,375,926 5,352,442 (8,142,864) (865,179)
80,653,589 8,569,444 (6,038,741) (641,616)
16 55,881 5,937 3,200 340
16 2,786,251 296,039 160,021 17,002
16 53,763 5,712 - -
16 223,525 23,750 12,802 1,360
16 287,250 30,520 27,572 2,930
16 40,895 4,345 742 79
16 7,264 772 345 37
19,069 2,026 27,370 2,908
_ - 8,860 941
7 17 2 354 38
58,357 6,200 7,048 749
3,532,272 375,304 248,314 26,383
77,121,317 8,194,140 (6,287,055) (668,000)
19 (25,887,902)  (2,750,590) (746,499) (79,316)
(25,887,902)  (2,750,590) (746,499) (79,316)
51,233,415 5,443,550 (7,033,554) (747,315)
7 (2,560,810) (272,086) (147,530) (15,675)
48,672,605 5,171,464 (7.181,084) (762,990)
2018 19 2018 12 31
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2018
20,212,655 - -
- 214,948,858 -

- (17,531,020) -

79 - -
5,171,464 (7,181,084) (762,990)

1,092,610,191

116,089,833 190,236,754 20,212,655

19 2018 12 31
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
48,672,605 5,171,464 (7,181,084) (762,990)
25,887,902 2,750,590 746,499 79,316
(890,452,406)  (94,610,568) (164,365,179)  (17,463,800)
(10,016,138)  (1,064,215)  (2,179,368) (231,558)
(47,782) (5,077) 148,738 15,803
1,681,378 178,646 5,679,111 603,406
(824,274,441)  (87,579,159) (167,151,283)  (17,759,824)
846,226,485 - 214,948,858 -
3,047,624 323,810  (28,733,154)  (3,052,898)
(6,402,600) - (17,531,020) -
92,017 9,777 - -
(747) (79) - -
(12,010,208)  (1,276,085) (746,499) (79,316)
830,952,571 88,288,711 167,938,185 17,843,432
6,678,130 709,551 786,902 83,608
786,902 83,608 - -
7,465,032 793,160 786,902 83,608
4,560,206 484,522 274,232 29,137
14,538,120 1,544,675 (655, 650) (69,663)
181,855 19,322 23,503 2,507
an @ (354) (38)

19 2018 12 31
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2021

646,615,628 68,702,910,475
6,605,918 701,878,788
640,009,710 68,001,031,688

3,590,101

2,329,718
111.05 11,799
103.59 11,006
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1)
2021 735,000 7,809

@
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2021

1,002,102,134

33,359,525

11
7,609,173,614

256,918,480

29 216,160,419,393
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2018 2018 12 31 2019
2019 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2021 26
106.25
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
UsD USsD
34,534 3,669 22,534 2,394
34,534 3,669 22,534 2,394
4 34,534 3,669 22,534 2,394
5 215,000 22,844 205,000 21,781
1) ) 8 1
249,513 26,511 227,542 24,176
6 (143,734) (15,272)  (121,067) (12,863)
105,779 11,239 106,475 11,313
105,779 11,239 106,475 11,313
7 J— J— J— R
105,779 11,239 106,475 11,313

17
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17

2019 12 31
2019 2018
usD usD
9 1,436,186 152,595 1,213,367 128,920
10 217,427 23,102 206,873 21,980
1,653,613 175,696 1,420,240 150,901
10 131,329 13,954 3,735 397
131,329 13,954 3,735 397
11 735,000 78,094 735,000 78,094
787,284 83,649 681,505 72,410
1,522,284 161,743 1,416,505 150,504
1,653,613 175,696 1,420,240 150,901
)
)
)
)
)
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2019 12 31
usD usD usD
2019
2019
2019 1 1 735,000 78,094 681,505 72,410 1,416,505 150,504
— — 105,779 11,239 105,779 11,239
2019 12 31 735,000 78,094 787,284 83,649 1,522,284 161,743
2018
2018
2018 1 1 735,000 78,094 575,030 61,097 1,310,030 139,191
— — 106,475 11,313 106,475 11,313
2018 12 31 735,000 78,094 681,505 72,410 1,416,505 150,504
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

UsD UsD
105,779 11,239 106,475 11,313
4 (34,534) (3,669) (22,534) (2,394)
21 2 ) @
71,266 7,572 83,933 8,918
(10,575) (1,124) 92,358 9,813
(10,575) (1,124) 92,358 9,813
127,594 13,557 (1,639) (174)
127,594 13,557 (1,639) 174)
188,285 20,005 174,652 18,557
4 34,534 3,669 22,534 2,394
34,534 3,669 22,534 2,394
222,819 23,675 197,186 20,951
1,213,367 128,920 1,016,181 107,969
1,436,186 152,595 1,213,367 128,920
9 1,436,186 152,595 1,213,367 128,920

1,436,186 152,595 1,213,367 128,920
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1.
KY1 1104
309 c/o

Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,

Cayman Islands
2.
@

IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB

()]

IFRS
©

USD
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@
(1)
(i)
(iii)

(b)
Q)

(i)

(i)
(iv)

Q)

(vi) @
(vit) (@(i)

®
IFRIC 23 IASB 2017 6  IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23
IAS 12

IFRIC 23 2019 1 1 2019 1 1
IFRIC 23
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IFRS 2015-2017 1ASB 2017 12 IFRS 2015-2017
IFRS 2015-2017 IFRS 2015-2017 2019 1 1
2019 1 1 IFRS 2015-2017
IAS 19 IASB 2018 2
IAS 19
IAS 19 2019 1 1

2019 1 1 IAS 19

1ASB IFRS
2(k)

17

2019 2018
34,534 22,534
34,534 22,534

2019 2018

215,000 205,000

215,000 205,000
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2019 2018
(34,668) (1,315)
(191) (545)
(34,859) (1,860)
(3,119) (3,117)
(105, 756) (106,500)
— (9,590)

(108,875)  (119,207)

(143,734) (121,067)

2029 10 10

2019 12 31

HOLT®

5,000 2018 5,000 2019 12 31
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CAT
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2019 2018

1,436,186 1,213,367

1,436,186 1,213,367

2019 2018
217,427 206,873
217,427 206,873
2019 2018
131,329 3,735
131,329 3,735
2019 2018

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2019 2018 12 31

©

2019 2018 12 31

@

HKD
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®
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a)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
25,573 — 25,573 3,735 — 3,735
735,000 — 735,000 735,000 — 735,000
760,573 — 760,573 738,735 — 738,735
b)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
— 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
34,668 — 34,668 1,315 — 1,315
©)
2019 2018
105,756 106,500
105,756 106,500

2019 12 31
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15.
16.

2019
17. 2019 12 31

1ASB 2019 12 31
IFRS 17
IFRS 3 2020 1 1
IAS 1 IAS 8 2020 1 1
2020 1 1 2020 1
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Cregif Susizes Managerment (Capran) Linited
Financial sistements far the e onded 31 Decamber 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended

31 December 2019

Petarencs
o Mobs
2019 2018
Statement of profit or loss (USD)

Interest income 24,534 L2 hE4
- of which Interest income from instrumerts at amodised cost 34 534 2 hE4
Met interest income a 34,534 22534
Senvice Fee Income B 215,000 206,000
Cther (losses M revenuss (1) ]
Net revenues 249,513 227,542
Genaral, admirstrative and trading expenses 5] (143,734) (121,067)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 105,779 106,475
Prafit befora tax 105,779 106,475
Income tax expanse T — —

Profit after tax

105,779 106,475

The notes on pages Sto 17 form part of these financial statements.
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el Suizse Mansgement {Cayman) Limiled
Fravcal! shrlamants for the year anded 51 Dacamber F015

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2019

A

2019 2018
Assets (USD)
Cash and due from banks g 1,436,166 1,213,367
Other assels 10 217,427 206,873
Total assets 1,653,613 1,420,240
Liabilities (USD)
Other liabilities 10 131,329 3735
Total liabilities 131,329 3,735
Shareholders’ equity (USD)
Share capital i 736,000 735,000
TRetained BAMNINGS TET.264 6815
Total shareholders’ equity 1,522,284 1,416,505
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,653,613 1,420,240

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on lo Sume Lodo

o

Micolas Papavoine
Direchor

Credit Sulsse Management {Cayman] Limited

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements.
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Lol Suizse Management (Cayruey Limided
Financial salements for #e ypear ended 31 December 2019

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2018

Share  Retained
capital  earnings Total
2019
2019 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
Balance at 1 January 2019 735,000 681,505 1,416,505
Prodit for the year - 106,779 106,772
“Balance at 31 December 2019 735,000 787,284 1,522,284
2018
2018 Statement of changes in equity (USD)
“Balance at 1 January 2018 735,000 575,030 1,310,030
“Proft for the year — 106,475 106,475
‘Balance at 31 December 2018 735,000 681,505 1,416,505

The nobes on pages B0 17 form part of these financial statements,
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Crengt Suisse Management (Caymueny) Lirnded
Fingncie! Satements for the year ended 37 December 20719

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2019

Ridwenza
iy Moke

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities I{I.ISE}

Fr.:\-.fi'_ fr_-_r .‘.r|.:_ :r-\,:_._alr 'I 0 i:'. 'I,T--I_---_r al I_ﬁ_ 4-;,-'-?'
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from aperating aclivities

Non-cash items included in net profit before tax
and other adjustments:

Interest Income q =4 524) (20 B54)
Unnealised gain and loss L =)
Cash generated from before changes in

operating assets and liabilities 71,266 83,933
Met (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Oiher assats (10,57H) Qo 308
Met {(increase)/decrease in operating assets {10,575) 92,358
MNet increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Cther habities and provisions 1547 B4 (1,639)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities 127,594 (1,639)
Income taxes pasd - -

Net cash generated from operating activities 188,285 174,652
Cash flows from financing activity (USD)

Inferest income 4 34,534 22,534

Met cash generated from financing activity (USD) 34,534 22,534
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 222819 197,186
Cash and cash equivalerts at the beginning of year 1,213,367 1,016,181

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

{UsD 1,436,186 1,213,367

Cash and due from banks 9 1,435,186 1,213,367

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

(UsD) 1,436,186 1,213,367

The notes on pages 8 to 17 form part of these financial statements,
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Snanclal staterents for ihe year ended 31 December 2015

MNotes to the financial statements

1. Principal activities

Cradit Suize Management (Cayman) Limited (the *“Company®) iz incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the admingstration
and management of assetsin frusts, The Company'sregistered olfics is oo Maples Corporate Services
Limited, PO. Box 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman lslands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(&) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Finandal
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable indhvidual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accourting Standards ('1ASs") and Inberpretations issued
by Intemalional Accounting Standards Board ("IASE"). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company s sef out below,

fb)  Basis of praparation of the finandial statemants
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, labilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumplicns are based on
histovical experierce and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the resulls of which form the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and Babiities
that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual resulis may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed onan ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision aftects only that
period, or in the pericd of the revision and future perods if the revision affects both cument and future

periods.
©  Foreign cumency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is US Dellars (LISD). Foreign cumrency transactions
during the year are translaled into United States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates nuling at the
transaction dates, Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated info
Linited States Dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporing period. Exchangs
gains and kosses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Mon-monetany assets and kabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign currency
are transtated into Unied States Dallars using the foraign exchange rates rubing at {he transaction dates,
Mon-monetary assets and Babilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
transtated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the lair value was determined, Foreign
currency differences arising on refransiation are recognised in profit or loss,
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes o Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
@)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily corwerdible info known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in valug, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

{a) Other assats

Cther assets are infially recognized at fair value and thersatter stated ot amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubttul debts (see note 2gl), except where the receivables are intersst-fres lcans
madeto related parties without any feced repayiment terms or the effect of dis counting would beimmaterial,
In such cases, the receivables are staled at cost less impalrment for bad and deubitul debis,

i) Frovisions and contingant abiitias

Prouisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has a legal o
constructive obligalion arsing as a result of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benafits will be reguired fo setile the obligation and a reliable eslimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the preseni value of the expenditure expacted to
settle the oblgation,

Where # is not probable that an autflow of economic benefits will be requirad, or the amaunt cannot be
estimated reliably;, the obligation is disclosed as a contingant kability, unless the probability of cutflow of
economic benefits is remole. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
oecurence of non-actumence of one or more future svents are also disclosed as contingent labilities
unkess the probablity of cutflow of economic bensfits is ramote,

@) impairment

Thecarrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at theend of each reporting period to determine
whether thers is any objective evidence of impairment, If any such objective evidence exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated at the end of each reparting pericd. An impaiment loss is recognised
whenever the cammying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are
recognized in the profit or loss.

Under IFRS 9, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impairment requirements have changed from an incurred loss model under IFRS 9 to an
expeched credit loss ("ECL") model under IFRS 9 by incorporating reasonable and supportable forecasts
of future economic conditions available at the reporting date. The adoption of this does not have a
material impact to the Company's financial statements.

() Revenue recogmnition
Prowided thaf it i probable fhat the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and

costs, if apphicable, can be measured reliably, management fee income is recognised in profit or loss
when thie investment management senvice s provided.

188/237



@i

K

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000o0000000000dn(ELs389)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes o Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Expeansas
Al expenzes are recognised in profit and loss on an accrual basis,
Related parfies

For the purposes of these financial statements, a parly is considerad to be related to the Company if:
(&) A person, or aclose member of that person's family & related to the Company if that person:
) has cortrol or joint control over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(i) s & member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent,

by  An entity &= related to the Company if any of the following condfions applies:

() The entityand the Company are members of the same group (which means thal each parent,
subsidiany and fellow subsidiary is refated to the athers).

(1) Oneentity is an associate of joint verture of the olher entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint vertures of the same third party.

() Oneentiy s a jint venture of a thind parly and the other entity is an associate of the thid
party.

{(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benelit of employees of aither the
Company or an entity refated to the Comparny.

(vi)  The enity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)

(vii) A person ientified in (2)() has significant influence over the entity or B & member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity)

Cloze members of the family of a parson are those family membars who may be expected to influsnce,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Standards and Interpretations effective in the currert period

e IFRIC 22 In June 2017, the IASE esved IFRIC 23 'Uncedainly over Income Tax
Treatments' (IFRIC 23), IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes and
i to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credite and tax rates, when there is uncerainty over income tax trestments under
14512, IFRIC 23 was effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2018, The
Company adopted IFRIC 23 on 1 January 2019, The adoption did not have a matenal impact to
the Company's financial position, resulls of oparation or cash flows.

»  Annual Improvements fo IFRS: 200 52017 Cycler In December 2017, the lASE ssued "Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle' (Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017). The
Improvements to IFRSs Z015-2017 were effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2019, The Company adopted the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cydle on
1 January 2019, The adoption did net have a materal impact to the Company’s financial position,
results of operation or cash flows,
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Credit S¥sse Management (Cayman) Limited
Mofes to Firancial statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2012
2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
+  Amendments to 1AS 12 Plan Amendment, Cuttalment or Settlement: In Februany 2018, the
IASE issued 'Flan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Settlement” (Amendments tolAS 19) that spacifies
how companies delermine pension expenses when changes to a defined benefit pension plan
occur. The Amendments to 1AS 19 were effective for annual periods baginning on or after |
January 2019, The Company adopted the Amendments to A5 19 on 1 January 2015, The
adoption did nod have a material impact to the Company’s financial position, results of operation

or cash flows,

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1458 has issued a number of amendments fo IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
pericd of the Company. Mone of these developments have had a matenal effect on how the Company's
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented in Mole
2k

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet sffective tor the current
accounting pericd (Mote 17),

4. Met Interest income

2019 2018
Net Interest Income (USD)
Interest income on cash and due from banks 24,534 22,534
Interest income 34,534 22,534

All the above interest income on instruments are at amortised cost,
5. Service Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and management
of assels in trusts.

Fevenue represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

2019 2018
Revenues (USD)
Service e income 215,000 208,000
Total revenues 215,000 205,000
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternents for the year ended 31 December 2019

6. General, Administrative and Trading Expenses

2019 2018

General, administrative and trading expenses (USD)

Other expansas (24, 665 (1,315
Bank charges {191) (545)
Trading expenses (34,859) (1,860)
Auditor remuneration (3,119 (=117
Direclors’ remuneration (106, 756) {106, 5000
Protessional Services — (9,590
General and administrative expenses (108,875) (119,207)
Total g-mml. administrative and hu:lng expenses (143,734) (121,067)

All of the above expendiures are payable to the Company’s immediate holding company and the Immediate
helding company settles such expenditures on behalt of the Company:

7. Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman lskands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemner in Councdl of the Cayman Istands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capital tawes until 10 Cetober 20290 Accardingly, no provision for income taxes i included
in these financial statements,

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sparsored unconsoiidated strucfured entities

The Company considers fself the sponsor of a structured enfity when either s name appsars inthe name
of the structured entity or in products Bsued by it or there is a general expectation from the markst that the
Company is assocated with the structured ertity or the Company was involeed in the design or set up of the
structured entity and has a form of invohement with the structured enfity  For unconsolidated structured
enlities that were sponsored by the Compary but no inferest was held, the Company did ned recene investment
management fees from these entities during the reporling period and no assets were transferrad to these
anities,

The below unconsalidated structured entities are sponsered by the Company where no management fes is
received and no interest is held by the Company as at 31 December 2019,

- HOLT® Japan Income Plus Strateqy Fund (For Qualified Institutional lrvestors Only)
The bebow unconsolidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fised annual

management fee of USD 5,000 (2018: USD 5,000) is recsived but no interest is held by the Compary as
at 31 December 2018
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Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Firancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

8. Unconsclidated Structured Entities (Continued)

Asia Equity Income Plus Strategy Fund (Fer Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Alpha Fund (Fer Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Ondy)
Diarwa Australian High Dividend Equity Alpha Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Cinly)
Principal £ C5 Canadian Equily Income Fund (For Clualified Institulional Investors Only)
TS Global KEIT Triple Fremium Fund (For Quadified Institutional Investors Only)
LS High Dwvidend Equity Premium Fund (For Cualifisd Institutional Irvestors Only)
U5 Small Cap Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Instiutional Investors Only)
Datwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Clualified Instdutional Investors Only)
J-REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US Preferred REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instifutional Irvestors Only)
Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Oualfied Institutional Investors Chnly)
MNEAYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onby)
Daiwa UK High Dividend Equily Fund (For Clualified Institutional Investors Only)
AMF Austraka Income Bond Fund (For Qualified Instilutional Irvestors Only)
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investars Only)
Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
LS Value Equity Concentrated Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Nissay Japan Equdy Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)
“AMP Austrakia REIT Fund (F or Qualified Instiiutional Investors Orily)
J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsei European Bond Fund (For Qualified |nstitutional Investors Cnly)

Balmaa American High Dividend Equity Liuattro Income Fund (For Qualitied Institutional Investors
nly.

Dawa American REIT Cuattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinzel World Wrap Fund Stable Type (For Qualitied Instftutional Investors Only)
Shirsel World Wrap Fund Growth Type (For Qualified Instititional investors Only)

US REIT Triphe Engine Plus Fund (For Qualified Institutioral Irvestors Only)

Japanese Govemment Bond 17-20 Year Ladder Fund (Far Qualified Institutioral Investars Only)
Australia REIT Fund

Australia REIT Plus Fund

LS Treasury 5-T Year Ladder Fund (For Qualified Institutional lovestors Cnly)

LIS Municipal Bond Fund

Tokic Marine CAT Bord Furd

Dowrside Control Equity Fund (For Gualified Institutional Investors Lnly)

Global High Dividend Equily Premium Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

LIS REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investars Only)

HOLT Eure Equily Premium Fund (For Qualified Instutional lrvestors Only)

PIMCO Short Term Income Stralegy Fund

PIMCO Shart Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund (For Cualified Instiutional Investars Only)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to consolidated structured entities that it was niot
contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently have the intention to provide firancial or other support to unconsclidated
structured entities that & is not contractually requised to provide.
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019

Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivaiants comprise:

2019 2018
Cash and due from banks (USD)
Cash and due from banks | ,4"515'.1, 185 1 M3 367
Total cash and due from banks 1,436,186 1,213,367
Other Assets and Other Liabilities
2019 2018
Other assets (USD)
Inianzst and feas recanable T 42T 06,873
Total other assets 217,427 206,873
_ 2019 2018
Other liabilities (USD)
Interest and fees payable 131,329 3,735
Total other liabilities 131,329 3,735
Share Capital
Authorised and issued share capital
2019 2018
No. af usp No. af LUsD
shares shares
Authorised:
Ordirary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,030 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Ordirary shares Tah, 000 736,000 T35,000 735,000

The holdars of ordinary shares are enfifled 1o recenve dvidends as declared from time to time and are entithed
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. Al ordinany shares rank equally with regard to
the Company's residual assets

Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capial are to safeguard the Campany’s ability to confinue
as a going concermn so that d can conlinue to provide retums for shareholders, by pricing services
cornmensumtely with the level of risk and by securing accesstofinance at a reasonable cost. Asthe Company
is part of 2 karger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and poficies for distribution of excess
capital may ako be affected by the group's capital management objectives. The Company defines “capital®
as incleding all components of equity.
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrran) Limited

Motes to Pnanclal statererts for the year ended 31 December 2013
Share Capital (continued) 4

TheCompany'scapital structura is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard tothe capial management
practices of the groupto which the Company balongs.  Adjusiments are made to the capilal structure in light
of changes ineconomic conditions affecting the Company or the group, 1o the extert that these do not condlict
with the directors' fiduciary didies towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements in the cument period.
Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management policies and
practices descrbed below,

Credit sk

The Comparry’s credit risk is primarlly atiributable to ameunts due from group companies and cash at
bank, Credit risk s defined as risk thai one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial koss to
ancther parly by failing to discharge an obligation, Management reguiarly monitors its risk expesure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carning amount of each financial assel in the statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance,

Ligunctity risk

The Company’s policy s o regulardy monitor its liquidity requirements to satisfy its contraciual and
reasorably foresesable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the Company's financial labilties, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand of undated and are expected 1o be setthed within three months.

Infarast rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the exdent that # earns bank interest on cash and

deposits. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, a change in interest rafes would have no direct matenal
effect on the camying value of the recognised assets or liabilities of the Company,

Forgign currancy risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cedain fransactions which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kaong dallars (" HKDS),

As the HKD & pegged to the United States dollar ("USD"), the Comparny considers that the risk of
movemanis in exchange raies between the USD and the HKD to be insignificant,

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments camied at cost or amortised cost are not
rmaterally different from their fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
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Credit Susse Management (Cayman) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019
Material Related Party Transactions

In additionto the transactions and balances declosed elsewhers in the financial statements, the Company
entered into the following material related party transactions,

a) Relaled party bakance shes! transactions

Inaddition i the transactions and balances declosed elsewhers inthe financial stalements, the Company
enlered into the following material related pary transactions in the normal course of business.

_ December 31, 2019 December 31, 20018
Parent Fellow Tevtal Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
Companies Companies
Assets (USD)
Clther assets = 215,000 216,000 = 206,000 206,000
Total assets - 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
Liabilifies and Equity
UsD)
Cther habilitios 25,673 - 25,575 3,735 — 3.735
Share capiia Vb, 000 - 35,000 ¥.35,000 - 135,000
Total liabilities and
sharehokders' equity 760,573 2 7E0,5T3 738,735 - 738,735
b} Related party revenues and expenses
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Elhw Ealhw
Parent  gomponies  Total Parent  Comeanies  Total
Other revenues
{UsSD)
Other revenues — 215,000 215,000 — 205,000 205,000
Other e xpenses
{USD)
Other expenses
i 34,668 — 34,668 1,315 = 1,315
) Remunarafion of ey Management Personnel
I!Hhuﬁh"ﬂ-iﬁl of Key Management Pargonnsl (USD) 2019 2018
Short-leem emplopes benefity 105, 7565 106 500
Tatad Remuneration of Key Management Person nel 105,756 108,500

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2019, the immedate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which s incorporated in Hong Kong and the ulimale contralling party of the Comparny is Credit Suisse
Group AG, which is incorporated in Switzedand. Credit Suisse Group AGS produces financial statemerts
avaitable for public use.

Restatement of Comparative Figures

Thie Company firancials have nol been re-stated.

[ 3]
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Credit Susse Management (Cayrran) Limited
Motes to Fnanclal staternernts for the year ended 31 December 2019

Non-Adjusting Events after the Reporting Period

There are no matesial non-adjusting evenis for 2019,

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but not
yvet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019

Up to the date of Issue of thess financial statements, the 1A5B has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance confracls, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2019 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Company

Effective for avccunting periods

beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 3, Oefinibon of abusness  1Jamey2020
Amendments to 145 1 and |AS 8, Definiion of matenal 1 Januany 2020

The Company is inlhe process of making an assessment of whal the impact of these developments &
expected to be in the pericd of initial application. The amendments are effective for annual pericds
beginning onor after 1 January 2020 with an early adopdion permitted. The adoption on 1 January 2020
did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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D) (Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2021 100 625

Intertrust N.V.

@) (SMT Fund Services
(Ireland) Limited)

2021
62,992,338 81 3,546
2021 26
129.15
2018
1
1995
(€) Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited London

Branch
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(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London

(Credit Suisse International)
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Meister*s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Independent auditors”® report to the Trustee

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Meister Collection (the "Series Trust'), a series-trust of Credit Suisse
Universal Trust (Cayman) 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at October 31, 2020, the statements of

comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating units and cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at October 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors " Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (1ESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 1ESBA code. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing , as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting process.
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Meister*s Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111

Independent Auditors® Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust”s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue
as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

March 03, 2021
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the ““Company””) set
out on pages 4 to 17, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow
for the year other then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard (““IFRS~”~).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors' for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the Audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor's report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company ~ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors = use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company ~ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor * s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor * s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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